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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ITEHES

On behalf of the board of directors of Talent Property Group
Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the audited
consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The consolidated revenue and gross profit for 2020 amounted
to approximately RMB348.2 million (2019: RMB277.7 million)
and RMB166.9 million (2019: RMB115.5 million), respectively.
The revenue for the year includes the revenue recognized from
luxurious flats and villas in each zone of our flagship projects
Xintian Banshan and South Lake Village Phase |, resulting in an
increase in the gross profit margin. Without taking into account
fair value changes on investment properties and provision for
impairment of properties under development, profit before tax
amounted to RMB97.8 million (2019: RMB52.0 million). With
reference to independent valuation, the Group recorded a
reduction of fair value of our Talent Shoes Trading Center and
other investment properties totalling RMB45.9 million (2019:
RMB62.6 million). After prudently reviewing factors such as the
current sales results and strategies, the development progress
and its costs, the Group made a provision for impairment loss
totalling RMB168.0 million for properties under development
(including logistics commercial projects) (2019: net impairment
loss of RMB165.7 million). After taking into account of the above
factors and the income tax expenses, a post-tax loss attributable
to the owners of the Company of RMB100.9 million was
recorded (2019: RMB99.8 million).
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OPERATING REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the significant change
in the global economic structure caused by the COVID-19
pandemic (“Pandemic”), together with trade protectionism and
continuous political disputes, brought greater uncertainties
to the global economic development. Fortunately, with the
Chinese government taking the lead to control the spread of the
Pandemic, people’s quality of life and national production saw a
rapid recovery, making China the first country to realise positive
economic growth among the world’s largest economies.

Under the Pandemic, central banks around the world continued
to apply loose monetary policies, and thus, liquidity remained
high. In the first half of the year, “city-specific policies” were
flexibly implemented across China and the People’s Bank of
China has lowered the reserve requirement ratio several times so
as to enhance market productivity through quantitative easing.
As the Pandemic gradually went under control and enterprises
resumed work and production, the real estate industry slowly
recovered. In the second half of the year, a series of policies
for real estate administrative regulation and strict control of
financial risks promulgated across China demonstrated the
general principle of “purchase real estate for living instead of
speculation” of the central government. Throughout the year, the
transaction volume of the real estate industry continued to record
new heights and prices continued to rise. However, market
performance diverged significantly across regions and cities. For
example, the market sizes of the Yangtze River Delta and the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area continued to
grow, yet some cities in Northern China saw oversupply.

The year 2021 marks the beginning of the “14th Five-Year Plan”,
and it will be a year of both opportunities and challenges for
real estate enterprises. The full recovery of nations after the
Pandemic will bring vitality to the global economy. Nevertheless,
the real estate industry is still facing constraints under the major
policy principle of “purchase real estate for living instead of
speculation” of the central government with the introduction of
various policies and regulatory guidelines aiming to reduce the
excessive reliance of enterprises and individuals on loans and
debt financing.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ITEHES

Xintian Banshan

Xintian Banshan (“#TKX%¥ L"), the Group’s flagship project,
is located beside Nanhu 4A Scenery Zone of Baiyun District
in Guangzhou. The project was built along the mountain with
a bird’s eye view of the grand CBD landscape. The high-
rise residential apartments at zone D and villas at zone C
were almost sold out. Xintian Banshan Villas at zone B, which
are built on mountain slopes along the mountain, are highly
appraised in the market and won various prizes. Thanks to
the joint efforts of our sales team, the subscription amount
and area recorded during the year for Xintian Banshan were
approximately RMB237 million (2019: RMB27 million) and
3,500 sgm (2019: 400 sgm). Riding on market enthusiasm,
the Group promoted sales of the remaining villas in South
Lake Village Phase | next to Xintian Banshan, and recorded
sales of approximately 4,700 sgm with a contract amount
of approximately RMB142 million. Looking into 2021, after
the recent outbreak of an overheated property market in
Guangzhou, it is expected that property control policies will
be tightened. However, the Pandemic has highlighted the
advantages of low-density communities, coupled with the
scarcity of top luxury villas in the city, the effect of wealth
absorption in the Greater Bay Area, and the Group’s continual
efforts to identify potential buyers, it has not hindered the
Group from continuing to promote the sales for the villas in
zone B of our flagship projects and achieving cash return. As
villas in zone E, are rare in the city, we have been intensively
engaged in marketing for its market launch in the second half
of 2021.
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Talent Shoes Trading Center

The Group’s Talent Shoes Trading Center in Liwan District,
Guangzhou is a redevelopment project refurnished into
a 10-storey building for integrated commercial and office
uses. Over the past year, all customers and employees of
the Talent Shoes Trading Center have encountered general
difficulties in operation and management under the impact
of the Pandemic. In addition, under the severe environment
of the recent industrial transfer and Sino-US trade frictions
which affected the businesses of our customers, the average
occupancy rate of the premise has declined, and short-
term rent concessions have been provided to the remaining
customers. Looking forward into 2021, with the fading of the
Pandemic throughout the world, the Group will enhance the
recruitment of merchants, optimize customer structure and
improve management services to maintain the rental income
from Talent Shoes Trading Center in the future.

Linhe Cun Redevelopment Project

Linhe Cun redevelopment project is located in the central
business district of Tianhe District in Guangzhou, which is
adjacent to Guangzhou East Railway Station. The Group
cooperates with Sun Hung Kai Properties Group for this
project. The development of the project has been completed.
The grade A commercial office building namely Guangzhou
Commerce Centre and units in block 1 to 6 of the high-rise
residential project known as Forest Hills were almost sold
out. They were accounted for in previous years.

This year, the last block of completed high-rise residential
units was promoted for sales intensively and recorded a very
satisfactory unit price. In view of the project sales nearing
its completion and with a large bank deposit, the Group will
endeavour to get a cash return of our share from the associate
company.
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Logistic Commercial Real Estate Project

After the strict control over the Pandemic in the country in the
second half of 2020, the economy has recovered with strong
market demand in some major metropolitan areas. However,
with the intensifying urban differentiation, the real estate markets
in the second and third tier cities have performed differently,
especially in the commercial and office sectors.

The Group successfully bid one land parcel in Guangling
District of Yangzhou City with a floor area of 81,000 sgm
in early 2017. The project was planned to be developed in
stages in zone A and zone B and was named Yangzhou
Intelligent Life City. The gross floor area above the ground in
zone A is approximately 91,000 sgm comprising 12 buildings
with 2 to 19 storeys. The saleable area of its commercial
units and offices is approximately 10,000 sgm and 80,000
sgm, respectively. As at the end of 2020, 10 buildings have
been awarded pre-sale certificates, and will begin its delivery
in 2021 and the construction of zone A are scheduled to be
completed by the end of 2021. The local supply of office
increased continuously in recent years, but sales have not
been satisfactory due to limited market demand. As at the
end of 2020, office subscriptions amounted to approximately
RMB25.5 million for area totalling 3,200 sgm (2019: RMB29.5
million for area totalling 3,600 sgm), were recorded. Looking
forward into 2021, we will continue to strengthen efforts in
marketing and make various investment invitations.

The Group successfully bid a land parcel in Shatou Town
of Yangzhou City with an area of 250,000 sgm in the
end of 2018 for a commercial project, namely Suzhong
Demonstration City on Intelligent Agricultural Industry. At the
end of 2020, the Company entered into an equity transfer
agreement with the local government to sell its equity interest
in order to meet its intention on social planning as well as the
Group’s demand for cash return. For details, please refer to
the shareholders’ circular of the Group dated 11 December
2020. As of the date of this report, the Group has received
equity transfer payment of RMB242 million and completed the
equity transfer procedures for 73% of the 90% equity interest
held by the Group in accordance with the relevant terms of
the agreement. Pursuant to the agreement, the remaining
consideration shall be fully paid in June 2021.
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The land parcel in Yunlong District of Xuzhou City
successfully bid in the end of 2017 with an area of 102,000
sgm was named Xuzhou Intelligent Industrial Town. The
project was developed as a whole and divided into zone
A, zones BC, zones DEFG and zone H with a gross floor
area of approximately 120,000 sgm above the ground, and
a total of 29 buildings with 3 to 14 storeys for commercial,
office and warehouse uses will be constructed. The gross
floor area of its commercial units and offices available for
sale are approximately 62,000 square meters and 41,000
square meters, respectively. As at the end of 2020, 27
buildings have been awarded pre-sale certificates, and
delivery will be commenced in 2021 and the construction of
the project is scheduled to be completed by the third quarter
of 2021. The Group seized the opportunity of several new
development plans launched by the local government and
the opening of metro in the city, and adopted a price-for-
quantity marketing strategies for faster cash return. As of the
end of 2020, subscriptions for commercial units amounted
to approximately RMB284.8 million for area totalling 28,400
sgm (2019: RMB43.7 million for area totalling 5,400 sgm) and
subscriptions for offices amounted to approximately RMB16.8
million for area totalling 2,500 sgm (2019: RMB69.7 million for
area totalling 9,300 sgm), were recorded. Various products
in zones DEFG are nearly completely sold. Looking forward
into 2021, we will increase efforts to sell products in zones
BC to large and small customers. As zones BC are located
along the main streets and has municipal construction and
development nearby, it is expected to destock faster and
cash recovery can be speed up.

In January 2021, the Group buy-out the 49% minority interests
of the holding company that hold the aforementioned logistics
projects for a consideration of RMB24 million. The transaction
was completed and we are now able to manage relevant projects
more efficiently and gain full control of the cash flow of these
projects.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of our board of directors, | would like to take this
opportunity to thank all of our shareholders, clients, financing
and business partners for their trust and support and our staff
for their hard work and dedication.

Zhang Gao Bin

Chairman and Executive Director
PRC Hong Kong

30 March 2021
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

OVERVIEW

The principal activity of Talent Property Group Limited (the
“Company”) is investment holding. On 10 December 2010, the
Company completed the acquisition of Talent Central Limited
from Talent Trend Holdings Limited (“Talent Trend”) which,
through its subsidiaries, holds interests in various real estate
projects in the PRC (the “Previous Acquisition”). The Group
currently engages in the business of (i) real estate development,
(i) property investment and (i) property management in the PRC.

REVENUE AND GROSS PROFIT

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded a
revenue and gross profit of RMB348.2 million and RMB166.9
million, respectively, as compared to a revenue of RMB277.7
million and gross profit of RMB115.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2019.

During the year, a revenue of RMB182.7 million (2019: RMB233.5
million) was recorded from the delivery and sales of residential
units and villas of Xintian Banshan with a gross floor area of
approximately 3,100 square meters (“sgm”) (2019: 3,800 sgm).
Revenue from sales of other properties was RMB140.3 million
(2019: RMB13.6 million), which mainly made up of sales of villas
of South Lake Village Phase 1.

Rental income and properties management fee income of
RMB13.4 million (2019: RMB18.4 million) and RMBS3.7 million
(2019: RMB3.5 million), respectively, were recorded from our
Talent Shoes Trading Center. Whereas rental income and
properties management fee generated from other properties of
the Group was RMB8.1 million in total (2019: RMB8.7 million).

After taking into account the costs from Previous Acquisition,
subsequent development cost, the net provision for impairment
loss as well as better profit margin of Xintian Banshan as well as
villas of our South Lake Village Phase |, gross profit and overall
gross profit margin increased to RMB166.9 million and 47.9%
(2019: RMB115.5 million and gross profit margin of 41.6%),
respectively.
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DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Distribution costs of RMB20.8 million were recorded in 2020
as compared to RMB11.0 million in 2019. During the year, the
Group increased spending in the promotion of our logistics
commercial projects and sales commission for Xintian Banshan.

ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER OPERATING
EXPENSES

Despite new charges and fees were incurred for new borrowings,
the Group stayed cautious on cost control. As a result,
administrative expenses decreased slightly to RMB46.1 million
(2019: RMB49.6 million).

SHARE OF PROFIT OF AN ASSOCIATE

The Linhe Cun Rebuilding project is an old village redevelopment
project located in the CBD of Tianhe District in Guangzhou and
it is adjacent to the Guangzhou East Railway station. The project
is carried out by an associate which is 30% and 70% owned
by the Group and Sun Hung Kai Properties Group, respectively.
Development of the project was completed. During the year,
revenue was substantially derived from the sales of residential
units in block 7 of “Forest Hills”. After taking into account the
costs from Previous Acquisition, which is re-calculated to reflect
the remaining underlying assets available for sale, the Group
recorded a share of profit of RMB38.6 million (2019: RMB19.6
million).
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

FAIR VALUE CHANGES ON INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Besides the Sino-US trade friction, the Pandemic adversely
affected local and other countries that created further challenges
against the shoe and footwear industry as well as foreign
trade. In view of weak rental of specialty market in Guangzhou,
decreased occupancy and provision of short term concession
to the tenants in our Talent Shoes Trading Center, fair value
deficits of RMB44.9 million (2019: RMB59.6 million) and
RMB1.0 million (2019: RMB3.0 million) were recorded for our
Talent Shoes Trading Center and commercial units of Shangyu
Garden, respectively. Reference was made to revaluation by the
Company’s independent property valuer.

IMPAIRMENT LOSS OF PROPERTIES
UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Despite mild market sentiment on commercial properties in late
2019, we commenced the presale of our logistics projects in
Yangzhou and Xuzhou in order to have cash back earlier. China
was the first country recovered significantly from the Pandemic.
However, various health precaution measures still in place which
affect daily life and economic activities. Demand and investment
sentiment in commercial properties in second and third tier
cities in the Country were yet to fully recover. Combining local
development and our marketing strategies, sales performance of
our Xuzhou Intelligent Industrial Town picked-up and destocked
faster than that of our Yangzhou Intelligent Life City.

After consideration of our price-for-quantity sales strategies,
development progress and future marketing strategy as well
as references to valuation by the independent property valuer,
provision of impairment loss totaling RMB168.0 million was made
to the aforementioned logistic projects under development (2019:
net impairment loss of RMB165.7 million).

BN YO

REVEZ ATV EED

BRAPXESERI - ZIFMEE R EMER
BERAFEE  BRREEENURINBEETRES
e - ERENEXEMSHHEEES - KX
RHPLEBRETRLRTFTHPHNEHRE
AEEEZXSF LR FEERNEREND R
BREAFEBEMARBKI4IBET (ZZE—N
F: ARK96BET) RARK10BE T
ZZE-NF: ARBI0EETT) - B4
IEBEZR N RV E S Y E G EREN(GE -

ZRTFUFEBEBRE

BEMAVER T AFEROTEAE R
wK - BRAMDFRBIESH M MR a9 YRR B A
EFOEED - PEREEERBRANER
MBI - AT - FRGREENERIDEET
BREEAEREELRS - AR RE=RETY
BRAMENBRERERAERARTEIE &
BEMBERLRMNZHRE - FMNEBEX
NREERENE T REF A BRGME
SHEWER

REBBRMMABRENHERRE  FHEE
B REHERBUARKMSEBILMEGE
AhEVE(ER - D8 L BERFYIRIAR ELR
BEEEREERXARK168.088T (ZT—
FOREBSBREFEARK165.7TAET)

Talent Property Group Limited Annual Report 2020



BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
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FINANCE COST

During the year, finance costs (before capitalisation) increased
to RMB89.1 million (2019: RMB74.1 million) as a result of higher
average borrowing. New borrowing had been made during the
year to fund the construction cost of logistic projects of the
Group as well as substitution of old borrowing with favourable
interest rate.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

During the year, corporate income expense and land appreciation
tax totalling RMB71.1 million was recorded (2019: RMB45.0
million) which was mainly attributable to sales of luxury residential
units and villas with higher profit margin.

Upon reduction of fair value of Talent Shoes Trading Center,
deferred tax liability previously provided at its acquisition was
reversed. It was partly offset by deferred tax effect of expired tax
losses of certain subsidiaries. As a result, deferred tax charge of
RMBS3.0 million was recorded during the year (2019: deferred tax
credit of RMB30.2 million).

LOSS OF THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Given the provision for impairment loss and unfavourable fair
values changes of our properties portfolio, loss attributable to
owners of the Company of RMB100.9 million was recorded for
the year (2019: RMB99.8 million).

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The following content lists out the key risks and uncertainties
facing the Group. It is a non-exhaustive list and there may be
other risks and uncertainties further to the key risk areas outlined
below.
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Market Risk

The Group’s assets are predominantly in the form of land use
rights, land under development, properties under development,
properties held for sale and investment properties. In the event
of a severe downturn in the property market in Guangzhou
and other parts of Mainland China, these assets may not be
readily realised. The Group closely monitored market condition
and formulated selling plan from time to time and diversified
investment to difference sectors and geographic locations. A
relatively low gearing ratio is maintained to accommodate such
risks.

Operational Risk

The Group’s operation is subject to a number of risk factors
distinctive to property development and property related
businesses. Default on the part of its buyers, tenants, sub-
tenants, contractors and strategic business partners, and
inadequacies or failures of internal processes, people and
systems or other external factors may have various levels of
negative impact on the results of the Group’s operations. The
Group has its internal control system and had experienced staffs
in different business functions to tackle and minimize operational
risks.

Risk pertaining to the property leasing and sub-
leasing

The rental rates and the occupancy rates will depend on various
factors, including but not limited to, prevailing supply and
demand conditions, economic conditions as well as the quality of
the properties. The Group currently carries out various marketing

activities and refurbish relevant properties to tackle the risks.

PROSPECT

Given the Pandemic is not over yet, intensified Sino-US friction,
the strife in deglobalization and continual imposition of tightening
policies and measures, the business environment of housing
market is still highly challenging. The Group and the management
will strive destocking, broaden financing channel and exploring
ways to secure enough resources for continual development
of projects on hand and grasping any attractive opportunities
cautiously to better support future growth of the Group.
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PORTFOLIO OF PROPERTIES Y ES k)
As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s properties and projectson R-ZZE-_ZTF+-_A=+—H  KEBHNIRA
hand are shown in the table below: MERIBEHEINTX :
Investment properties rREYHE
Gross floor Percentage
Lease term area (sq.m.) interest
Project and address Purpose of land WEEME EREIL
HE Rtk Jizkes T EESHR (FF3K) %
A 10-storey commercial building built over a Commercial Medium 22,5626* 100%
basement of 3 levels, mixed commercial and office 72 H Hf
building with car parking spaces.
No. 18 Zhan Xi Road, Liwan District, Guangzhou
City, Guangdong Province,
the PRC
(“Talent Shoes Trading Center”)
Hh B BR R B N T 7 0 [ Ik PR R 1 85
—IEEN=[EE FAIERERRAGREER
HHEBAZI0ESHEET
(I RREEXERSFL])
Commercial units of Shangyu Garden, Commercial Medium 2,198 100%

No. 45 Tianhe Road, Tianhe District, Guangzhou g% HHA
City, Guangdong Province,

the PRC (“Shangyu Garden”)

Fp B SR B N T KT [ OROA B 4555

EEER ([ LBEE])) cHRAEM

*

spaces.
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

BN YO

Properties under development BREPY X
Planned
Saleable
GFA*
Site area (sq.m.) Percentage Expected
(sq.m.) sHEITT$5E  interest % Stage of completion
Project and address AR EE BEEEE ##% completion date
HE Rtk (EFK) (FF73K) BoE% ZREE I A
Xintian Banshan 118,102 Approximate 100% Under 2021
South Lake Village Phase Il for Zone E development —E-—F
Tonghe Road, Baiyun District, El%#915,000 fi 2
Guangzhou City, Guangdong
Province, the PRC (“Xintian Banshan”)
TR
FOMILGESE — &
R ER A BN T AR R R A
(MR 1)
Yangzhou Intelligence 81,186 Approximate 51% Under 4Q 2021
Living City 4790,000* development T4
A project to the south of Kaifa i 2 FNEE

East Road and east of Jiangdu
South Road, Yangzhou, Jiangsu
Province,

the PRC

HMNE B ETEN

R BT 4% & 15 )N T 5 35 R B

AR BT #B R B IAR M IE B
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Planned
Saleable
GFA*
Site area (sgq.m.) Percentage Expected
(sq.m.) sHEITFEEE  interest % Stage of completion
Project and address B mE B EME % completion date
HE Ritbit (FFHXK) (FFHXK) Bokk% ZTHRABE I A
Xuzhou Intelligence 101,904 Approximate 51% Under 4Q 2021
Industry Town #3104,000* development - —4F
A project to the south of Guozhuang fi 2 FUNZEE

Road and

North of Longhai Railway,
Xuzhou, Jiangsu Province,
the PRC
RINEBESE/NE

A BT & A IR M T

2B 7R B& DA B K% B Vg # B
PSin:zop=Y=

It excludes area for basement, car parking spaces, units delivered  * TEEHE - FEM ERXFMFREBRITHERN
and completed for delivery. B o

** |t represents saleable area in zone A which excludes floor area of ** EARRABRBMAIHEERE  TREEEZEERE

34,000 sgm for basement, carparking spaces, etc. Zone B has a 34,000 F R ZH[E ~ (REE(I5E - BERABE
total floor area of 91,000 sgm including 31,000 sqm as basement. £ 5 £91,000F 75 2K » B 1E31,000F 5 K
The project has to retain floor area of 89,000 sgm as owner’s ROHDJEE o 3ZTH B ZA{R ¥ 89,000 H KKEER
occupation/investment. BIEBB AR REAR -

# It excludes floor area of approximately 27,400 sgm for owner’s  * TREREAMEA R EH27,400F 5 K8
occupation/investment. RS -
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75 K %5 el R

Completed properties held for sale HELHEZE B T YE
Gross floor Percentage
area (sq.m.) interest %
Project and address WMBREMBE ER
H B Rt (F7HXK) BoE%
(Note)
(Hfat)
Linhe Cun Redevelopment Project Approximate 30%
Tianhe District, #914,000

Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province,
the PRC

MM ERIER

B SR A BN T OROA &

Residential units in Zone B and D of Approximate 100%
Xintian Banshan #719,000
A ILBRDEFEEN

Residential units of Approximate 100%
South Lake Village Phase |, Tonghe Road, #71,300

Baiyun District, Guangzhou City,

Guangdong Province, the PRC

R

R EREBMT

H = & R

AL E — A

ZEEEM

Car parking spaces of Xintian Banshan, Dongming Xuan, N/A 100%
Tianlun Garden and Shangyu Garden TE A

R

MIREL S RBEH - KRERK EBEEZIFHEMA

Talent Property Group Limited Annual Report 2020



BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
E v NEuEE

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s total assets as at 31 December 2020 were
approximately RMB4,266.7 million (31 December 2019:
approximately RMB4,025.4 million) which were financed by the
total equity and total liabilities of approximately RMB1,597.6
million (31 December 2019: approximately RMB1,808.0 million)
and approximately RMB2,669.1 million (31 December 2019:
approximately RMB2,217.4 million) respectively.

The directors consider the Group will have sufficient working
capital for its operations and financial resources for financing
future investment opportunities.

The Group borrowings were all denominated in Renminbi. Bank
balances and cash were mainly denominated in Renminbi. As at
31 December 2020, there were no outstanding forward contracts
in foreign currency committed by the Group that might involve it
in significant foreign exchange risks and exposures.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s gearing ratio then
computed as total liabilities over total assets was approximately
62.6% (31 December 2019: 55.1%). As at 31 December 2020,
bank borrowings amounted to RMB312.9 million (31 December
2019: RMB333.3 million) carry variable interest rate of 70.6% to
110.6% (31 December 2019: 63.3% to 110.6%) multiply by the
People’s Bank of China 5 years loan base interest rate on plus
0.55% inflated rate. Other borrowings amounted to RMB431.6
million (31 December 2019: RMB524.8 million) carry fixed rate
with a range from 9.5% to 11.8% (31 December 2019: 9.5%
to 11%) per annum and amounted to RMB64.7 million (31
December 2019: Nil) were interest fee.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The revenue and the cost of goods sold and of service of the
Group are mainly denominated in Renminbi. Therefore, the Group
is not exposed to any other material foreign currency exchange
risk. An average rate and a closing rate of HK$1.12461:
RMB1 and HK$1.18771: RMB1, respectively, were applied on
consolidation of the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020. No hedging measure has been implemented by
the Group.
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, an investment property and completed
properties held for sale of the Group amounted approximately
RMB563 million (31 December 2019: RMB607 million) and
RMB204.6 million (31 December 2019: RMB187.3 million)
were pledged to secure general banking facilities. Completed
properties held for sale, properties under development and
deposit with the approximate value of RMB323.6 million (31
December 2019: RMB267.9 million), RMB370.5 million (31
December 2019: RMB538.3 million) and RMB3.4 million (31
December 2019: RMB4.2 million) respectively were pledged to
secure other borrowings.

NUMBERS AND REMUNERATION OF
EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had approximately 216
(31 December 2019: 213) employees, with about 211 in
the Mainland China and 5 in Hong Kong. All employees are
remunerated based on industry practice and in accordance with
prevailing labor law. In Hong Kong, apart from basic salary, staff
benefits including medical insurance, performance related bonus,
and mandatory provident fund would be provided by the Group.

The adoption of a new share option scheme was approved by
the shareholders meeting held on 20 May 2013. No new share
options were granted during the current year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group adheres to environmental sustainability from office
throughout the property portfolio. As a responsible corporation,
the Group strives to ensure minimal environmental impacts
by carefully managing its energy consumption, water usage,
property design and waste production. In addition, we engaged
construction contractors with relevant licenses that was granted
by government authorities encompass environmental protection
and work safety. The Group has closely monitored the project at
every stage to ensure the project development and construction
process are in compliance with environmental protection and
safety laws and regulations, and would require construction
contractors to immediately resolve any defect or non-compliance,
where necessary. In addition, the Group strives to minimize the
environmental impact by saving electricity and encouraging
recycle of office supplies and other materials. For further details,
please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in mainland China while the Company itself is listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. The Group would make
professional judgement and seek professional legal advice from
its legal department and, where necessary, legal advisers to
ensure transactions and businesses to be performed by the
Group are in compliance with the applicable laws, regulations

and local industry practices in all material aspects.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH THE GROUP’S
EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group believes that the Directors, senior management and
employees are instrumental to the success of the Group and that
their industry knowledge and understanding of the market will
enable the Group to maintain the competitiveness in the market.
Therefore, the Group offered competitive remuneration package
to relevant staff. In addition, a Share Option Scheme was
adopted by the Company on 20 May 20183. At appropriate time,
option would be granted for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who can contribute to the

success of the Group’s operations.

The Group maintains good relationship with existing and potential
customers to understand the market trends that would enable
the Group to adjust its operating and marketing strategies timely,
which are crucial to the development and success of the Group.

The Group maintains a solid and steady relationship with major
contractors to ensure product quality and progress on-schedule.
The Group works and closely monitors daily construction work of
its contractors and settled their work done timely.

The Group places effort to build up and maintain good
relationships with various commercial banks and financial
institutions as the businesses of the Group are capital intensive
nature and require on-going funding to maintain continuous
growth.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT AND FINANCIAL
GUARANTEE

Details of the capital commitment and financial guarantee are set
out in note 34 and 42 to the consolidated financial statements.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. ZHANG Gao Bin - aged 41, is the Chairman of the board
of directors of the Company and the President of the Group.
Mr. Zhang is responsible for the overall strategic development,
general management, human resources and the business
operation of the Group. Mr. Zhang obtained his bachelor degree
in business administration from the University of Greenwich, the
United Kingdom. He has over ten years of experience in the
property development industry. Mr. Zhang joined the Board in
December 2016.

Mr. LUO Zhangguan — aged 36, is the executive director of the
Company as well as the general manager of finance of the PRC
group companies, responsible for business development and
daily management of finance department. Mr. Luo graduated
from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics and obtained a
bachelor degree in Economics with major in Finance (International
Finance). Mr. Luo joined department of business development of
Guangzhou branch of Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited
in 2007 and served as its credit analyst, customer service
manager and department head of SME banking, successively.
Before joining the Company, he has served as the Sub-Branch
Manager of Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited Guangzhou
Panyu sub-branch since 2012. Mr. Luo is the cousin of Mr.
Zhang Gao Bin. Mr. Luo joined the Group in April 2015.
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EERSREEBAEBZERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. LO Wai Hung - aged 61, obtained a bachelor degree in
Commerce from James Cook University of North Queensland,
Australia. Mr. Lo is an associate member of Chartered
Accountants in Australia and New Zealand and a fellow member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lo
is an independent non-executive director of Shandong Weigao
Group Medical Polymer Company Limited (stock code: 1066)
and C Cheng Holdings Limited (stock code: 1486). Mr. Lo
was an independent non-executive director of Lerthai Group
Limited (formerly known as LT Commercial Real Estate Limited)
(stock code: 112) during March 2017 to November 2018. All
the aforementioned companies are listed on Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lo was also an
independent director of China Merchant Property Development
Co. Ltd. since 2011 and the shares of which were ceased from
listing on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange on 30 December 2015.
Mr. Lo joined the Group in February 2011.

Mr. MAK Yiu Tong - aged 62, graduated from the China
University of Political Science and Law with a bachelor of law
degree in 1998. Mr. Mak has extensive experience in litigation
and corporate matters. At present, he is legal executive of Chiu,
Szeto & Cheng, Solicitors, a firm of solicitors in Hong Kong. Mr.
Mak has been working in the legal industry for over 30 years. Mr.
Mak was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Hao Tian International Constructions Investment Group Limited
(formerly known as Clear Lift Holdings Limited) (Stock code:
1341) in February 2017. Mr. Mak joined the Group in December
2015.

Mr. Fok Chi Tat Michael — aged 47, graduated from University
of Toronto with Bachelor of Commerce and received his Master
of Corporate Finance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and is a member of American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Fok has over 20 years of extensive experience
in auditing, corporate finance and investment banking focusing
on IPO sponsorship, mergers and acquisitions, fund raising and
corporate restructuring. At present, Mr. Fok is the co-founder
and managing director of Maxa Capital Limited (B EARAR A
B]). Mr. Fok served as the deputy head of investment banking
department in Huatai Financial Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited and
was the director of Anglo Chinese Corporate Finance, Limited.
Mr. Fok joined the Group in August 2019.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LEE Wai Kuen - aged 47, is the Company Secretary
and Chief Financial Officer of the Company. He is responsible
for execution, supervision and advisory of financial reporting,
internal control, reorganisation, corporate governance and
company secretarial matters of the Company. Mr. Lee holds a
bachelor degree in accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. Lee had worked in an international firm of certified public
accountants and was the financial controller and company
secretary of TeleEye Holdings Ltd. (now known as CircuTech
International Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8051), the finance
manager and company secretary of ePRO Ltd. (now known as
Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8086),
the financial controller of WLS Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 8021)
and deputy financial officer and company secretary of MOBI
Development Co., Ltd. (stock code: 947), during the periods
from May 2004 to June 2005, July 2005 to January 2006,
January 2006 to August 2007 and August 2007 to May 2011,
respectively, all of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. Mr. Lee joined the Group in May 2011.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is
committed to ensuring high standards of corporate governance
in the interests of shareholders and devotes effort to identifying
and formalising best practices. During the year ended 31
December 2020, the Company has applied the principles and the
code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and has complied with the same.

THE BOARD

To protect and enhance shareholder value, the Board acts with
integrity and due care for the best interests of the Company
and its shareholders. The Board is collectively responsible for
leadership and for promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs. Leading the Group in
a responsible and effective manner, the Board adopts formal
terms of reference which detail its functions and responsibilities,
including, but not limited to, ensuring competent management,
approving objectives, strategies and business plans and
monitoring integrity in the Company’s conduct of affairs.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for determining the overall strategy and
corporate development and ensuring the business operations are
properly monitored. The Board reserves the right to decide all
policy matters of the Group and material transactions. The Board
delegates the day-to-day operations to general managers and
department heads who are responsible for different aspects of
the operations of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The attendance of individual Directors at meetings of the HE-E-_ZTE+_-_A=+—HBIFFHREE
Company during the financial year ended 31 December 2020, fARIEERNART @E 2 HERWMT ¢
was as follows:

Number of attendance*/meetings held in 2019
HERE  R-B-LFERITZEE
Annual
General
Audit Remuneration = Nomination Meeting
The Board Committee Committee Committee [

Exe® EHREEE FHZEEE 2 REEEE BFAS

Executive Directors #{TES

Mr. Zhang Gao Bin (Chairman of the Board)** 5/5 N/A 11 1/1 0/1
ReBEE (EFRFE)™ @A
Mr. Luo Zhangguan** 5/5 N/A 1/1 11 1/1
BEWRE i

Independent Non-executive Directors

VFHTES

Mr. Lo Wai Hung** 5/5 3/3 1/1 1/1 1/1

[E B S

Mr. Mak Yiu Tong** 5/5 3/3 1/1 1/1 1/1

ERELE

Mr. Fok Chi Tat*™ 5/5 3/3 1/1 1/1 1/1

EXELE

* The Directors can attend meetings in person, by phone or  * FEEAURGHFE  IRBEARRCEBER
through other means of electronic communication in accordance MEINBFSUNEMETFBAARALZ2 NG
with the Company’s Articles of Association. % o

** During the year ended 31 December 2020, each of these ** HE_Z-_ZF+_A=+—HILFE -
Directors participated in seminars and conferences as well §$//\E waeked HERE - Hﬂ?‘J
as reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the B R W‘&“%% EHEN R E K
economy, general business, real estate or Directors’ duties and BTESHES ALENFESHNESS
responsibilities, etc. The Group also continuously updates the TR REMERES R TN SR
Directors on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules & o

and other applicable regulatory requirements.
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Currently, the Company does not appoint chief executive officer.
In view of the operation of the Group, the Board believes that the
present structure of the Board will provide a strong leadership
for the Group to implement prompt decisions and to formulate
efficient strategies, which is for benefits of the Group.

Moreover, the day-to-day operation of the Group’s businesses
are shared among those executive directors and the
management of the Company. Therefore, there should be
a clear division of the responsibilities at the board level to
ensure a balance of power and authority, so that power is not
concentrated in any one individual.

Together with a balanced of skill and experience for the
business of the Group, a balanced composition of executive and
independent non-executive director of the Board shall exercise
effective independent judgment. Currently, the Board comprises
of five directors, of which two are executive directors, namely Mr.
Zhang Gao Bin (“Mr. Zhang”) and Mr. Luo Zhangguan (“Mr. Luo”)
and three independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Lo
Wai Hung (“Mr. Lo”), Mr. Mak Yiu Tong (“Mr. Mak”) and Mr. Fok
Chi Tat Michael (“Mr. Fok”)).

As at 31 December 2020, all the independent non-executive
directors were appointed for an initial term of two years which
is automatically renewable for successive term of one year upon
the expiry of the said term and subject to retirement and re-
election in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company. In
accordance with the bye-laws of the Company, at each annual
general meeting of the Company one-third of the directors shall
retire from office by rotation. The Board considers that sufficient
measures will be taken to ensure the corporate governance
practices of the Company are not less exacting than those in the
Code A4.1 and 4.2.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

The management is obliged to supply the Board with adequate
information in a timely manner to enable the members to
make informed decisions and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities. Each director has separate and independent
access to the Group’s senior management to acquire more
information and to make further enquiries if necessary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Board and
the Company’s affairs. All Board committees are established
with defined written terms of reference which are available to
shareholders on the Company’s website. The Board committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A nomination committee of the Company had been established
by the Board with written terms of reference. The nomination
committee comprises two executive directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The nomination committee
is chaired by Mr. Zhang. The principal duties of the Nomination
Committee include, but are not limited to, review and making
recommendations to the Board on the structure, size and
composition of the Board; making recommendations to the Board
regarding any proposed changes; identify, selection or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; assessing the independence of
independent non-executive directors and relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for directors.

The Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. Pursuant to the
board diversity policy, the Nomination Committee will review
annually the structure, size and composition of the Board and
where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and
to ensure that the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile.
A number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, industry experience,
technical and professional experience, skills and knowledge,
length of services and time to be devoted as a director of
the Company, would be considered to ensure that the Board
maintains a balanced diverse profile.
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The Company has also adopted a nomination policy, setting out
the approach for nominating and appointing a director either
to fill a casual vacancy on the Board, or as an addition to the
existing Board subject to the Bye-Law of the Company. Selection
of candidates will be based on criteria including character,
qualifications, any potential contributions that the candidate
can bring to the Board and its diversity and the candidate’s
willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge his/
her duties. Upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of a
new director and respective biographical information and details
of the candidate by any members of Nomination Committee, the
Nomination Committee will evaluate such candidate based on the
criteria as set out above to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship.

During the year, the Nomination Committee met once to assess
the independence of the retiring independent non-executive
directors, recommend the re-appointment of directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and appointment of a
director, update and review the Board Diversity Policy to ensure
that it aligns with the Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee of the Company had been
established by the Board with written terms of reference. The
remuneration committee comprises two executive directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. The remuneration
committee is chaired by Mr. Fok. The remuneration committee
is responsible for assisting the Board in achieving its objective
of attracting and retaining Directors and senior management
of the highest caliber and experience needed to develop the
Group’s business successfully. The remuneration committee is
also responsible for the development of a fair and transparent
procedure in determining the remuneration policies for the
Directors and senior management of the Company and for
recommendation to their remuneration packages. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, the Remuneration Committee met
once to review the above matters.

All employees are remunerated based on industry practice and
in accordance with the prevailing labour law. In Hong Kong,
apart from basic salary, staff benefits include medical insurance,
performance related bonus and mandatory provident fund would
be provided by the Group.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors (the “Audit Committee”) and reports to the board of
directors. A written terms of reference had been established.
The committee members performed their duties therein which
includes duties set out in the code provision C.3.3 (a) to (n)
of the Corporate Governance Code. The Audit Committee
held three meetings in 2020 and reviewed the Group’s annual
results for 2019 and interim results for 2020; reviewed the audit
plans and findings of the external independent auditor; made
recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of the
external auditor and its remuneration; and reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems and financial matters
pursuant to its terms of reference. The Audit Committee meets
the external independent auditor at least once a year to discuss
any areas of concerns during the audits without the presence of
the management. The annual report for the year ended 2020 of
the Company has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Company and the Group. In preparing the
financial statements, the Board has adopted Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants that are relevant to its operations.

The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, the Board has
prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the fees paid/payable
to the auditor of the Company in respect of the audit services
and non audit services in 2020 were amounted to approximately
RMBO0.8 million and RMBO0.5 million respectively.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is responsible for determining and reviewing the
policies and performance for the corporate governance for the
Group. During the year, the management of the Company from
time to time reported to the Board for their review on various
policies and practices about corporate governance of the
Company, which included training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management, Company’s
policies and practices on compliance of legal & regulatory
requirements and conduct of employees. In addition, the
corporate governance report together with other content of the
annual report was circulated for review and approval by the
Board.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board has the responsibility to maintain appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems in order
to safeguard the interest of the Group and the Shareholders. The
Board conducted review and assessment of the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
and procedures during the financial year ended 31 December
2020 by way of discussions among themselves and with the
management of the Group, members of the Audit Committee
and the external independent auditor. The risk management and
internal control systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

During the financial year, an external consultant has been
engaged to maintain the internal audit function for the Group to
assist the Board and the Audit Committee in ongoing monitoring
of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group. The external consultant discussed with the executive
directors and senior management of the Group to identify key
business risks across the Group, and has adopted a risk-
based approach in developing the annual internal audit plan
with a focus on higher risk areas. Internal audit review was then
conducted in accordance with the annual internal audit plan. All
findings and recommendations on internal control deficiencies
for the year had been communicated to the management who
are required to establish remedial plans to correct those internal
control deficiencies and implement agreed action plans within
a reasonable time period. The Board and the Audit Committee
had reviewed the risk assessment results, internal audit planning
and internal audit reports submitted by the external consultant.
In respect of the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board
considered the risk management and internal control systems
are effective and adequate.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary plays an important role in supporting the
Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board and
that Board policy and procedures are followed. The Company
Secretary is responsible for advising the Board through the
Chairman and/or the executive directors on governance matters
and should also facilitate induction and professional development
of Directors. Details of the Company’s company secretary are set
out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” of this report.

The Company Secretary took not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in the year ended 31 December 2020 as
required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company may distribute dividends by way of cash or by
other means that the Board considers appropriate. Any proposed
distribution of dividends is subject to the discretion of the
Board and, where applicable, the approval of the Shareholders.
The Board will consider various factors before declaring or
recommending any payment of dividends. These factors include
the results of operation of the business of the Group, the retained
earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and each
of the members of the Group, the Group’s actual and expected
financial performance, the general business conditions and
strategies, the Group’s expected working capital requirements
and future expansion plans, the general economic conditions and
the future prospects of the business of the Group, shareholders’
interests, statutory and regulatory restrictions on the payment
of dividend and other internal or external factors that the Board
deems appropriate. The Board will review, from time to time, and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update
and/or modify the dividend policy of the Company at any time.
There is no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular
amount for any given period.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDER
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes in regular and timely communication
with shareholders as part of its efforts to help shareholders
understand its business better and the way the Company
operates. To promote effective communication with the public at
large, the Company maintains a website (http://www.760hk.com)
on which comprehensive information about the Company’s major
businesses, financial information and announcements, annual
and interim reports and shareholders circulars are being made
available.

All shareholders of the Company are given at least 20 clear
business days’ notice of the date and venue of the annual
general meeting. According to the Listing Rules, the Board will
conduct voting at the forthcoming annual general meeting by
vote.

SHAREHOLDER'’S RIGHT

Shareholder’s right to convene special general
meeting and procedures for putting forward
proposals at shareholders’ meeting

By-law 58 of the Company’s bye-laws provides that any
shareholder holding not less than 10% of the paid-up capital
of the Company can deposit a requisition to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board.

The Requisitionist(s) shall have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the Requisitionist(s) themselves may do so in accordance with
the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, as amended from time to time.
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Putting enquiries to the Board

Information of the Group are communicated to the shareholders
mainly through general meetings, including annual general
meetings, financial reports, and its corporate communications
and other corporate publications on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange’s website. Shareholders may at any time
make a request for the Company’s information to the extent that
such information is publicly available. Any such questions shall

be first directed to the Company Secretary of the Company:

By post

Unit A704

3rd Floor, Tower A, New Mandarin Plaza
No. 14 Science Museum Road

Tsim Sha Tsui East

Hong Kong

By email
ir@760hk.com

Shareholders may also directly raise questions during the
shareholders’ meetings.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for directors’ securities
transactions. Having make specific enquiries of all directors
of the Company, they have confirmed that they complied with
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the
accounting period covered by the annual report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no changes in the constitutional document of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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OVERVIEW AND SCOPE

Pursuant to Appendix 27 (the “Guide”) of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), Talent Property Group Limited
(the “Company”), together with its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group” or “we”), hereby presents this Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) Report to disclose ESG related matters that
are relevant to the Group’s business and have material impacts
on the environment and society for the year ended 31 December
2020 (the “reporting period”). Unless otherwise stated, the
reporting period is from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020.

To fulfill our corporate responsibility, we aim at contributing
to sustainable development and environmental protection
considering the characteristics of our business. The Board of
Directors (the “Board”) is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
ESG strategy and reporting. An ESG Working Group, comprising
management personnel across the Group and reporting directly
to the Board on any significant issues, has been set up to
monitor and manage the Group’s ESG matters. The Group has
also established ESG policy, infrastructure and framework to
govern relevant ESG practices and processes.

To determine the scope and content of disclosure in this ESG
Report, the Board has assessed the materiality of key ESG
issues associated with the business and operations of the Group
during the reporting period, and prioritized the importance of
these issues to the business and relevant stakeholders. Based
on the assessment result, the Group has decided to include in
this report ESG matters that are relevant to the Group’s property
investment, development and management business, and
disclose them in two subject areas, namely Environmental and
Social.
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group strives to minimize adverse environmental

impact by adopting environmental protection practices

over energy consumption, use of resources and waste

production. The construction of two logistics parks,

Yangzhou Shiyou Logistics Development Co., Ltd." (5 /M
HEREEARAF) (“Yangzhou Shiyou”) and Xuzhou
Shiyou Logistics Development Co., Ltd." (5 B9 7 2%
BARAF) (“XuZhou Shiyou”), commenced in 2019 and
are now finishing in phases.

A1,

Emissions

The Group has established a mechanism to
collect emission data and evaluate significant
environmental impact brought by its operations.
The Group does not produce any significant
hazardous waste and only has emissions which
are primarily generated from the consumption
of electricity, paper and petrol during its daily
sales and office administration activities. Relevant
Environmental Key Performance Indicators
(“KPIs”) in connection to our property investment,
development and management business during the
reporting period are disclosed below:

These Companies have been registered under Chinese names.
The English names represent management’s best effort in

translation of the Chinese names.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued) A. RIE @
A1. Emissions (continued) Al. BERWD ()
2020 2019
—EBEF —E-nF
Air Pollutants Emissions (Note 1, 2)
ZRSRWKR (H3F1 - 2)
Nitrogen oxides (“NOx”) 5,311 g 7,373 g
Refeyw ([aftw]) 53112 % 737325
Sulphur oxides (“SOx”) 139 g 222 g
wmaky ([FRatm]) 1392 %% 202N
Particulate matters (“PM”) 391 g 543 g
Fary ([FERLY ) 3912 % 543 A7

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions

BERE (BERE ) K

Direct emission of GHG

RERBEEIN

Indirect emission of Carbon dioxide equivalent (“COz2e”) (Note 3)
—aeimgs ((Z8iREE ) MEER (H:23)

CO2¢e per employee

BUREN_ALRES

Non-hazardous Waste Produced (Note 4)
FREEWNIERIEY (HE4)

Paper waste disposed at landfills (Note 5)
EETHHAROER (#1:25)

Waste disposed per employee

BUEREERENEY
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N/A (Note 2)

N/A (Note 2)

TER (Mat2) TER (Hi2)
302,678 kg 282,628 kg
302,678 AT  282,6281fT
1,408 kg per 1,410 kg per
employee employee
BuES BlEE
1,408 fT 1,410 T

871 kg 1,209 kg
8T1AT 1,209 T

4 kg per 6 kg per
employee employee
BUREB4AAT BEE6AT
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued) A. RIE (&)
A1. Emissions (continued) A1, HERWD ()
Notes: KiaE -

The Group does not engage in activities that:

> Consume gaseous fuel;
> Directly generate GHG; or
> Generate hazardous wastes.

Air pollutants emissions are generated from petrol
consumption by the Group’s six private vehicles
that are used for employee transportation.

The Group’s indirect CO2¢ emissions comes from
electricity consumption and disposal of paper
waste in the office and sales locations.

The Group has engaged qualified construction
contractors to manage the property development
projects. Non-hazardous waste produced during
property development activities is collected,
treated and disposed by construction contractors.
These wastes are not directly incurred and
controlled by the Group and are thus excluded
from the Group’s environmental data. In
consideration of limited paper waste volume, the
Group disposes the waste to landfills through the
waste disposal channel managed by the different
buildings’” management service providers.

ASE L FHEF -
> HFESEIE

>  HEETRERE: %
> EERRENZES

RS RPN
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FURDBRERTE L °
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A1l.

Emissions (continued)

Emissions and waste produced at property
development construction sites are managed
by the construction contractors as stipulated
on the agreements with the contractors. Having
considered the environmental impact of the
contractors’ operations, management has
required the construction contractors to comply
with relevant laws and regulations. There are
different buildings’ management service providers
for managing the waste disposals. Regardless
of the type of waste, we closely monitor our
contractors’ performance in collecting, sorting
and storing waste to avoid waste leakage. During
the reporting period, there were no incidences of
non-compliance with Environmental Protection
Law and Regulations on the Administration of
Construction Project Environmental Protection of
the People’s Republic of China and other relevant
laws and regulations with significant impact on the
environment and natural resources relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and

non-hazardous wastes.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A1,

Emissions (continued)

For emissions of air pollutants, the emission of NOx
and PM for the reporting period was improved by
approximately 28.0% as compared to the previous
period. The emission of SOx for the reporting
period was improved by approximately 37.2% as
compared to the previous period. Such change
can be attributed to the Group reduced usage of
vehicles in the reporting period.

The indirect emission of greenhouse gases per
employee in the reporting period remained at
around 1,400 kg, a level similar to that in the
previous reporting period.

The total paper waste disposal decreased by 28.0%
(338 kg) from 1,209 kg to 871 kg. The results
showed that the paper-saving initiatives implemented
by the Group such as use of eco-friendly paper and
two-sided printing are effective.

A.

RIE - HERERWS

RIE (8)

A1,

BrE (48)
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A2,

Use of Resources

The Group does not engage in resources or energy
intensive business activities. The types of energy
consumed by the Group are mainly electricity and
petrol. Water usage for the Group’s daily sales and
office administration activities is minimal where both
water supply and discharge are solely controlled
by the office building’s property management.
No issues in water sourcing were encountered
during the reporting period. In addition, the Group
does not involve directly in the use/purchase
of packaging materials. Relevant Environmental
KPIs in connection with our business during the
reporting period are disclosed below:

A.

IRIE (&)

A2,

ARER
AEEWBREERIGERE S
MEREE - NEBFTEEANRE
RBETEZRE NUM - N
EREHEEMAZETRESA
KR KE B RS2 /A
MARNBYEEREES - V]
SHRE - Y ERKRIREEE -
AN REBEWEER P RBE
MEEOERRE - RS
Al - BRI E R R H R IR IR
RARDUER BN ¢

2020 2019
—B-BE —T-hE

Energy Consumption

BEIRUHEAE

Direct energy consumption from petrol fuel consumed 90,277 kWh 143,705 kWh
KB PR VR B R RE 90,277 FELBF 143,705 F R
Indirect energy consumption from electricity purchased 566,300 kWh 525,181 kWh
KEFIBSE N EEEIRERE 566,300 T FLBF 525,181 F R
Energy consumption per employee 3,054 kWh 3,328 kWh
per employee per employee
iR B MRS BUEE BllEE
3,054 T FL B 3,328 F R
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ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A2,

Use of Resources (continued)

The energy consumption per employee remained
at slightly over 3,000 kWh, with slight improvement
as compared to that in previous reporting period
resulting from effective energy conservation
measures implemented by the Group. The direct
energy consumption for the reporting period
decreased by 37% (53,428 kWh) from 143,705
kWh to 90,277 kKWh, which is a result of decreased
petrol consumption due to the aforementioned
reduction in vehicle usage. The indirect energy
consumption for the reporting period increased
slightly by 7.8% (41,119 kWh) to 566,300 kWh as
compared to 525,181 kWh in previous period.

Management is not aware of any incidences of
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations,
such as Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Energy Conservation {2 A R HE M &1 L98ERE )
on the use of resources.

A.
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A3.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group’s business has no direct and significant
impacts on the environment and natural resources.
The ESG Working Group regularly assesses the
environmental risk exposure of the Group. Should
there be any subsequent changes to the relevant
the ESG
Working Group will report such changes to the

legislation or the Group’s operation,

Board and adopt additional measures, if necessary,
to minimize the Group’s impact on the environment
and natural resources.

We have implemented a number of eco-friendly
initiatives to promote efficient use of resources and
energy conservation:

> Switch off lights during lunch hours;
> Set air-conditioning at an optimal temperature;
> Pre-set the printers to two-sided printing

mode, and post paper-saving reminders
near photocopy machines; and

> Promote reuse and recycle of paper by
placing recycling boxes in the office.

In the future we will continuously adopt the above
or other additional eco-friendly measures with the
aim to maintain a reasonable level of, or further
reduce, the emissions, electricity consumed and
paper waste produced during the operations of
the Group’s property investment and management
business.
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RiE HERERBWMS

SOCIAL

Employment and Labour Practices

B1.

B2.

Employment

The Group is committed to complying with relevant
labour standards and employment laws and
regulations which are applicable to our business.
The Group has developed comprehensive human
resources policies and guidelines to govern
staff recruitment, compensation, promotion and
dismissal processes, and employees’ working
hours and rest periods. The Group also endeavours
to provide equal opportunities throughout
recruitment and employment and to combat all
forms of discrimination in workplace. During the
reporting period, there were no incidences of
non-compliance with Labor Law of the People’s
Republic of China and other relevant laws and
regulations that have imposed a significant impact
on employment and labour practices.

Health and Safety

The Group strives to provide a healthy and safe
workplace for its employees in all locations.
Safety guidelines are stipulated in the Employee
Handbook, which are distributed to all employees.
During the reporting period, the Group was in
compliance with Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Work Safety, Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases, and other relevant laws
and regulations relating to the provision of a safe
working environment and protection of employees
from occupational hazards which are applicable to
the Group’s business. No severe injury or fatality
was reported throughout the reporting period.
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B.

SOCIAL (continued)
Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

B3.

B4.

Development and Training

The Group places great emphasis in developing
our employees and providing both internal and
external staff training to enhance their knowledge
and skills. The Group has developed a Training
Policy to govern training related matters. Each year,
management prepares a Training Budget to allocate
sufficient resources for staff development based on
the results of Training Requirement Survey.

Labour Standards

The Group is committed to complying with Labor
Law of the People’s Republic of China and other
labour standards relevant to the Group’s business.
The Group has established a policy to prohibit child
and forced labour. Management has also taken
reasonable and necessary steps in the recruitment
process to ensure that there are no deviations
from the Group policy and objectives. During the
reporting period, there were no incidences of
non-compliance with Labor Law of the People’s
Republic of China and other relevant laws and
regulations that have imposed a significant impact
on employment and labour practices.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Operating Practices

Bb5.

Supply Chain Management

The Group has established a contract policy and
corresponding evaluation procedures to govern
the selection of suppliers and construction
contractors. To ensure product and service quality,
and to manage environmental and social risks in
supply chain, the Group only engages suppliers
and construction contractors with licenses that
are granted by relevant regulators or government
authorities. The obligations of suppliers and
contractors with respect to environmental
protection and compliance with relevant safety
laws and regulations are clearly stated in signed
contracts. We also ensure the fair and reasonable
treatment of all suppliers and contractors in our
practices.

We require our suppliers and contractors to
follow the Code of Conduct set out by the Group
to encourage them to comply with all legal
requirements and ethical business practices.
Contractors are required to adhere to applicable
laws and regulations in their operations. They need
to adopt relevant measures to create a healthy,
safe, fair and corruption-free working environment.
The Code also encourages suppliers and service
providers to mitigate negative environmental
impacts and to improve their environmental
performance. During the reporting period, there are
no non-compliance to any legal requirements on
suppliers and contractors.
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HtE @
REBIK (8)
B6. E@mEIT

B. SOCIAL (continued) B.
Operating Practices (continued)
B6.  Product Responsibility

The Group recognizes the importance of health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
related to products and services provided by the
Group. The Group has established relevant policies
to ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulations and to fulfil its corporate responsibility
towards the customers.

The Group closely monitors the development
projects at every stage to ensure that project
development, construction process and product
quality are in compliance with Construction Law of
the People’s Republic of China and other applicable
laws and regulations, and requires construction
contractors to immediately resolve any defects or
non-compliance incidences, where necessary. The
Group has entered into contracts with construction
contractors to obtain indemnity agreements and
their commitment to carry out operational and
quality assurance activities, and to comply with
regulatory requirements. The Group has also
established property acceptance procedures to
ensure that the properties are ready for delivery to
our customers in pursuant to the sales agreements.
During the reporting period, there are no reported
case of non-compliance of Construction Law of the
People’s Republic of China and other applicable
laws and regulations.
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B.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SOCIAL (continued)
Operating Practices (continued)

B7.

Anti-corruption

The Group strives to create a corporate culture that
embraces integrity, honesty and fairness, and is
committed to conducting its business in the absence
of any undue influences. Requirements and guidelines
relating to the prevention of bribery, extortion and
fraud are stipulated in the Employee Handbook
and other relevant ethics-related internal policies
so as to communicate the Group’s requirements
and to provide guidance to employees in carrying
out business and operational duties. The Employee
Handbook and internal policies are subject to periodic
review, and updates are made, when necessary, to
ensure that they are in line with the latest development
of Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Law of the People’s Republic of China for Countering
Unfair Competition and other applicable laws and
regulations. To minimise the ESG risks embedded in
our business operations, we maintain stringent internal
control and risk management systems. Abiding by
the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), the Group has had no incidents
of non-compliance to such Ordinance. Management
and staffs follow the anti-bribery policies of the
Group, upholds honesty, integrity and fairness in all
aspects of our business. We maintain zero tolerance
of any form of bribery. All transactions are required
to be documented in an accurate, complete and
timely manner, in order to maintain a high degree of
transparency and to minimise the risk of bribery in the
Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIB - HERERBE

B. SOCIAL (continued)
Community
B8. Community Investment

The Group has taken the communities’ interests
into consideration when conducting business. It is
of our great desire to minimize the negative impact
of our operational activities to the community.
All employees are encouraged to participate in
community activities and charitable activities as
contribution to society.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries and associate
are set out in notes 43 and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in property
development, investment and management in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business, an indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business and an analysis
using financial key performance indicators are provided in
the “Chairman’s Statement” and the “Business and Financial
Review”, respectively, from page 4 to 10 and page 11 to 22
of this Annual Report. A description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group, a discussion on the Group’s
environmental policies and performance and an account of the
Group’s key relationships with its stakeholders are stated therein.
The above discussions form part of the Report of the Directors.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, the Group sold 43.2% of its goods and
services to its five largest customers in its continuing operation.
Sales to the largest customer represents 13.7% of the total
sales. Whereas, purchases of the Group’s five largest suppliers
and contractors accounted for 94.1% (2019: 88%) of the total
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier
and contractor included therein amounted to 47.6% (2019: 44%)
of the total purchases.

As far as the directors are aware, neither the directors, their
associates (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”)) nor those shareholders (which, to the knowledge
of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers or contractors.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EXEWES

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the consolidated financial statement on page
70 to 73 and page 209.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 77 to 78 and note 44 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

SUBSTANTIAL INVESTMENTS AND
ACQUISITIONS

There was no substantial investment and acquisition.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements during the year in the share options and
share capital of the Company are set out in notes 31 and 32 to
the consolidated financial statements.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements during the year in the investment
properties and plant and equipment of the Group are set out
in notes 14 and 15 respectively to the consolidated financial

statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2020
are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Consolidated Results

EFEWRES
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mEXA
Year ended 31 December
BE+-AZ+-HLEE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—E-EE TN ZE-)\& ZE+tF ZE%F
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ABBFR ANRETT ARETL ARETT ARETL
Revenue Yok 348,216 277,653 278,668 727,015 506,764
(Loss)/profit before income tax BETERAT (BB),/
pinkl (116,132)  (176,290) 101,397 188,410 (54,966)
Income tax expenses FTEfEYX (74,036) (14,817) (40,510)  (129,9995) (18,745)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (B#B)/ &F (190,168)  (191,107) 60,887 58,415 (73,711)
(Loss)/profit attributable to: TIATEE
(B518),/5H -
Owners of the Company ZN/NCIET DN (100,868) (99,844) 69,625 63,667 (73,711)
Non-controlling interests IF1E AR I & (89,300) (91,263) (8,738) (5,252) -
(190,168)  (191,107) 60,887 58,415 (73,711)
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EETHRES

REEE BERES

As at 31 December

Consolidated Assets, Equity and Liabilities

R+=A=+-H

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
BB —TNF —Z-N\E —Z+F ZTF
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’'000
ANREFT ANREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE 979,312 1,022,373 1,266,364 1,264,218 1,249,309
Current assets REEE 3,287,386 3,002,984 2,353,925 2,033,492 2,387,501
4,266,698  4,025357 3,620,289 3,297,710 3,636,810

LIABILITIES &%
Current liabilities FEEE 1,862,199 1,588,253 1,423,477 1,156,509 1,400,458
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 806,889 629,081 232,723 246,628 406,766
2,669,088 2,217,334 1,656,200 1,403,137 1,807,224

EQUITY i

Attributable to: THIALER
Owners of the Company VN/NCIEZ DN 1,746,972 1,848,085 1,047,888 1,874,634 1,809,395
Non-controlling interests R = (149,362) (40,062) 16,201 19,939 20,191
Total Equity B 1,597,610 1,808,023 1,964,089 1,894,573 1,829,586
DIRECTORS EE

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date

of this report were as follows:

RAFEERBEERAREBH  XAFRESFN
T

Executive Directors: HITESE
Mr. ZHANG Gao Bin (Chairman) R BiE (£EF)
Mr. LUO Zhangguan mEREE
Independent Non-executive Directors: BYEHITES :
Mr. LO Wai Hung EEEEE
Mr. MAK Yiu Tong BRERE
Mr. FOK Chi Tat Michael EXERAE

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, all of the directors

are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election. Mr. Luo

Zhangguan and Mr. Lo Wai Hung will retire by rotation and, being

eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on page 23 to 25 of
the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of independent non-executive directors, had entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of two years and
each of these contracts is subject to termination by either party
giving not less than 1 month’s written notice.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract, which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office
or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for
the Directors and officers of the Group throughout the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the directors or the management shareholders of the
Company or any of their respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) had any business which was considered to
compete or was likely to compete with the businesses of the
Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EXEWES

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts other than employment contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2020, the interest or short position of the
Directors and chief executives in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQO”)) which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of SFO), or which were required to be and are recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

M}EE (=] II’J
REFEAN  REBSAIN  WEETZIKEFTL
BRARNRRBRBEGAEMNEES N 2EER

THRZEH -

EERATHARNA QA
BorE 2R - HEROREEE
ZEBRER

N—EBE-FF+_A=+—H BEBFLRTHE
HRARRR R EEMEEEE (REHF KRR
GO (TEHREEGKRA] EXVEBZRE) 2
Wﬁ - FEERG K EREES %EET;E%,,JE%F
%&Hﬂ SR EEXVEBET7 KR8 B
FERXFTRERSRER (BEFRSREE %%)Si
Hﬁiﬂwuﬁfﬁ A SRERE 2R E
B) HARERARRIREFSKBE KD
FIME R EARE 2 E LMtk ERs e
B mﬁx%%‘uwﬁu%ﬁ MAR B R AT
MREER S A Jhan Tt

Percentage of the

Capacity/ Company'’s issued
Name of director Nature of interest Number of shares share capital
HEATE BT
EEnE B HEEME gy 4= BAEABDLE
Zhang Gao Bin Personal 111,095,000 1.06%
REE fEA
Interest in controlled corporation 6,474,393,939 62.89%
REEHEEER
Luo Zhangguan Personal 1,380,000 0.01%
BET {[EUN
Mak Yiu Tong Personal 150,000 0.00%
ERE A
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EETHRES

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ FERERAQTR 7K EERSG
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE ZREZREAR

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF

THE COMPANY

So far as is known to the Directors or chief executives of the EARRAEZEFHITHRAHMEN  R_T_TF
Company, as at 31 December 2020, the interests or short +-A=+—H TERE (KR AIEEHKT
positions of substantial shareholders (other than Directors or the  TNA2& BN MR BIRM S EERHDER R
chief executives of the Company) in the shares or underlying 155 MK EIEEHIEXVELE2 K30 Sf & AR
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the ARQATEEHNANATRIBEE L RIS KNS
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of 336{ERTEAFE y B ME sy g s
SFO or were recorded in the register required to be kept by the  #AR :

Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s
underlying issued
Name Note shares interest share capital
EAQRE #1T
=18 Htat HEARGEZHE BRABDEE
Talent Trend Holdings Limited 1 6,474,393,939 62.89%
Notes: WI:E -
(1) The entire issued share capital of Talent Trend Holdings Limited is (1) Talent Ir(\and Holdirlgs Limitedi%ﬂ??é??%
directly, beneficially and wholly owned by Mr. Zhang Gao Bin. AmRmBAREEE  BEaRk2EHA -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETHRES

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Share option scheme of the Company was adopted on 20
May 2013 for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to Participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Particulars of the scheme are set out in note 30 to
the consolidated financial statements. The maximum number
of unexercised share options currently permitted to be granted
under the Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise,
to 10% of the shares of the company in issue at any time. As at
30 March 2021, the number of shares of the Company available
for issue in respect thereof was 1,029,313,655, representing
10% of the issued shares of the Company. In addition, save as
determined at the discretion of the Board, there is no minimum
holding period before an Option is exercisable. No options were
granted, exercised, cancelled, lapsed or remained outstanding

during the year ended 31 December 2020.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option
Scheme”, no equity linked agreements were entered into during

the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws and there is no restriction against such
rights under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of shares or other
securities of the Company by the Company or its subsidiaries
during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Save as the related party transactions as set out in note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements which were fully exempt
from the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, the Group did not enter into any other
connected or continuing connected transactions during the
financial year ended 31 December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s Corporate Governance Report is set out on page
26 to 35 of the annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
FROM INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Company’s directors.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s shares.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETHRES

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining shareholders of the Company
who are entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held on 28 June 2021, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from 23 June 2021
to 28 June 2021, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for
attending and voting at the annual general meeting, all transfer
documents should be lodged for registration with Company’s
Hong Kong branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30
p.m. on 22 June 2021.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be tabled in the forthcoming annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. CHENG & CHENG LIMITED as
auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Gao Bin

Chairman

Hong Kong, PRC, 30 March 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
@ CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Wmom o og F M OF OB A N A H

Level 35, Tower 1, Enterprise Square Five,
38 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong

To the Shareholders of Talent Property Group Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Talent
Property Group Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
collectively referred to as (“the Group”) set out on page 70 to
212, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2020 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB E S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Valuation of investment properties

The key audit matter

FRRFXSEE
RREZEFASRBESNHERAEF  BR
HAMRS Hﬁ‘kiﬁz%‘%ﬂﬁ%’f??%%xﬁﬁilﬁ °
%%ﬁé%*ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ/\ﬁﬁka&&%&?ﬁtﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

As at 31 December 2020, the fair value of investment properties
of the Group was RMB598,000,000.

Significant estimation and judgement are required by
management of the Group to determine the fair value of the
investment properties. To support the fair value determined by
the management of the Group, the Group engaged an external
valuer to perform valuations on the investment properties at the
end of the reporting period.

The accounting policies and disclosures for the estimation of fair
value of investment properties are included in Notes 2, 4 and 14.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EBINEERIE - SR EEEEREER
=9

BEYENMGE

BREXEE

RIE-_ZTF+_A=+—H > BEE£EKEY
¥ AFEAEARES598,000,0007T °
EEBEHEETREMENLATFTERTESEHE
AEEtAEE - BXEF BESEEEEEEFEAT

B BEBEES
YIREITEE -

MBAERMR RS HREIRE

HETIREWER
MizE2 ~ 4514

FENSHBRRMERERER

ESNEXRNMNEEREELER

We evaluated the objectivity, independence and competency of
the valuer.

We compared inputs to the valuation model, on a sample basis,
with the Group’s records, which included underlying lease
agreements and documentation, details of number of property
units held for investment purposes and current rents.

We discussed with the external valuer regarding the
reasonableness of methodology and key assumptions being

used.

We performed site visits accompanied by the management of the
Group for investment properties.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Net realisable value assessment of the Group’s
properties under development and completed
properties held for sale

The key audit matter

BB R E S

BEEZEIE (8)
it BEERERRTYERBEHE
ZERTIYENTREFE

BEEXER

As at 31 December 2020, the Group held properties under
development and completed properties held for sale amounted
to RMB1,564,914,000 and RMB820,851,000 respectively,
net of impairment loss of properties under development
RMB168,000,000 recognised during the year ended 31
December 2020, as disclosed in Notes 18 and 19 respectively to
the consolidated financial statements.

The estimation of the net realisable value (“NRV”) of properties
under development and completed properties held for sale
required the management of the Group to estimate the selling
prices based on prevailing market conditions, less costs to
complete and sell the properties. Given that the Group had
significant amounts of properties under development and
completed properties held for sale and that the management’s
determination of the NRV required the management of the Group
to exercise significant judgment, we concluded that the NRV
assessment as one of the key audit matter.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RZZZZTF+—A=+—H  BEEEFEAZ
BRMERBELEZERTIMESRNAARKE
1,564,914,0007T & A R #820,851,0007T * HZE
ZECEF+ A=+ HALFERRNEREP
) %R B B 8% 8 B A R #168,000,0007T © 2
RIRNGRE B SRR MY E 18 A1 94 5% -
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B((AZERFE]) NEAFTE EEEEEE
REFRTTAGEHEER  BEZRMLEY
ENRARFH - ER BEXEREREERRTY
ENFIFHEZERIYE  MEREEEER
BEFER T2 BEEEEEEETEKRH
B BERA AERFEANTEABRERS
HZ— e

EERERRNAEEBRELEE

We noted that the management of the Group had engaged an
independent valuer to determine the current market value of
the completed properties held for sale and properties under
development, in order to perform the NRV assessment. We
assessed the valuer’s independence, qualifications and expertise
and read their terms of engagement with the Group to determine
whether there were any matters that might have affected their
objectivity or whether there were scope limitations imposed upon
their work.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB E S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BREZEIE (&)
EERERENAEERREREE

We discussed with the valuer the methodology and assumptions
used in determining the current market value of the properties.

Specifically, with regard to completed properties held for sale,
we sample-checked the current market value of properties used
by the valuer to the actual selling prices of comparable properties
in the similar location near the end of the reporting period and
determined whether there was any significant variance.

With regard to the properties under development, we discussed
with the management of the Group and the valuer how they
arrived at the estimated percentage of completion, the estimated
selling prices when they are completed and the estimated costs
to complete, and checked to the source data on a sample
basis. Further, we compared the market value determined by
the valuer with the carrying amount of the properties recorded
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements to see whether
adequate impairment loss had been provided.

Interests in an associate

The key audit matter

B mEEMTRETDERTHERSRENS
SERMBRR -

ARRH  BRFFLEZCRINE  BFY
HEMEMRNYENRITMEFLMERSE - X
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IRBEIE - I BEEHEGEMETATE
B BREGEMBRERMCEYENRMENE
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As set out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group had a 30% equity investment in an associate which
had been accounted for using the equity method. As at 31
December 2020, the Group’s interest in the associate amounted
to RMB351,546,000. The Group’s share of the associate’s
profit after tax for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
RMB38,556,000.

The associate is a property developer in Guangzhou, the
PRC. As at 31 December 2020, the associate had completed
properties held for sale, amounted to RMB390,784,000, stated
at the lower of cost and NRV in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Given that the NRV estimation required a
significant management judgment and that completed properties
held for sale represented significant components of the
associate’s net assets, we concluded that the NRV assessment
of the associate’s completed properties held for sale was one of
the key audit matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BB R E S

FEREZXEIE (&)
EERERENAEERRERSE

We were not the statutory auditor of the associate. We
performed audit procedures on material items and analytical
review on the other items of the associate.

We discussed with the management of the Group for the
performance of the associate and how the associate prepared
the financial statements, in particular, whether the accounting
policies used by the associate in preparing its financial
statements were in line with the Group’s accounting policies.
With regard to the associate’s completed properties held for
sale, we had performed site visits on a selective basis. Further,
we had compared the carrying amount of the properties stated
in the associate’s financial statements on a sampling basis with
the latest selling prices of the properties.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

included in the annual report,

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to

be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB E S

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB E S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify your opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the Group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that

we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships

and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHEMREE

RBORERGESHBERRNEM

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (&)

STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, EEZEWEBHEE B BNSIESD » REPHL
we determine those matters that were of most significance FEEYH AHGEEMEREANERIIERAS
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the £ - EMEKBREZEE - BRIEEREIER
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We FAFAFEBRNLZEEE  FAREEANER
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or S BERABRBEHNEEEAAEEANTR
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter of when, & R # B A R AR HHBHFIZE M A ER
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter FREFIWE - BB SN2 BED RS 5 3
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse L5518 o

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Hong Kong, 30 March 2021

Ho Wan Nei
Practising Certificate number P06991
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RERBEREMEEKARRE

(For the year ended 31 December 2020) (B2 =—F-FF+=-H=+—HIFE)

2020 2019
—EBHF —E-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AREFT ABRETFIT
Revenue g 5,6 348,216 277,653
Cost of sales and services $HE K AR AR AR (181,348) (162,184)
Gross profit EF 166,868 115,469
Other revenue and net loss Halham R BEFRE 7 12,868 10,705
Distribution costs Pali=ID®N (20,821) (11,038)
Administrative and other operating 77 % H ith &4 5 &2
expenses (46,097) (49,642)
Fair value changes on investment KWEYE Z NFEE
properties (45,930) (62,581)
Impairment loss of properties under ZE Y% REER
development (168,000) (165,706)
Share of result of an associate SME—FEEBE R R EE 38,556 19,630
Finance costs & AR 8 (53,576) (33,127)
Loss before tax MRBLATE B 9 (116,132) (176,290)
Income tax expense FrigfiF sz 12 (74,036) (14,817)
Loss for the year FERE (190,168) (191,107)
Loss attributable to: THALTELESE
Owners of the Company ZN/NEIEZ SN (100,868) (99,844)
Non-controlling interests FEVERR R = (89,300) (91,263)
(190,168) (191,107)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME g
RERBERAMEEKARRE

(For the year ended 31 December 2020) (Bt2—F—FF+=-H=+—HILFZ)

2020 2019
—EBCEF —E-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR¥ T AEEFIT
Other comprehensive (loss)/ FEHMZ2E (FHE)
income for the year N
ltems that may be reclassified HEmpeaFoEEIa%s
subsequently to profit or loss: #IER -
Exchange differences on MEBINETS 2 P TSR
translation of financial statements RZERZE
of foreign operations (245) 41
Other comprehensive EEHME2E (BB,
(loss)/income for the year A (245) 41
Total comprehensive loss FEXEERETH
for the year (190,413) (191,066)
Total comprehensive loss THALTEEEZE
attributable to: EiEEEE .
Owners of the Company PIN/NETEZ =N (101,113) (99,803)
Non-controlling interests FEFRE AR M 2 (89,300) (91,263)
(190,413) (191,066)
RMB RMB
AR AR#
Loss per share BRER 13
Basic and diluted BN (0.980)cent (0.970)cent7>

Talent Property Group Limited Annual Report 2020




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI R

(As at 31 December 2020) (R=F=FF+=-A=+—H)

2020 2019
—EIEF —E-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B et AR T ABRETFIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERER
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties KEME 14 598,000 643,000
Plant and equipment 5= K 5% 15 4,522 3,344
Right-of-use assets FREEE 16 1,591 3,183
Interests in an associate R—EEE AR 2 s 17 351,546 312,022
Prepayments, deposits and FEMRIE - HE R
other receivables H AR 3K 21 — 20,000
Pledged deposit ek 23 3,386 1,190
Deferred tax asset B IAE E 30 20,267 39,634
979,312 1,022,373
Current assets REBEE
Properties under development BEPYE 18 1,564,914 1,689,931
Completed properties held FIEHEZERIME 19
for sale 820,851 975,195
Trade receivables JE Y BR 3R 20 6,796 6,282
Prepayments, deposits and other Fa{TFIE « 184 &
receivables H At B W AR X 21 174,344 95,557
Contract costs BRI 22 2,356 608
Tax recoverable AR B F 18 10,311 37,842
Pledged deposit BEFEe 23 = 3,000
Cash and cash equivalent HeRESZEY 23 109,991 194,569
2,689,563 3,002,984
Assets classified as held for sale DA IEHENEE 24 597,823 -
3,287,386 3,002,984
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e B EUIRR

(As at 31 December 2020) (R=F=ZFF+=-H=1+—H)
2020 2019
—ECEF —ET-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR¥ T AEEFT
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables & BR 3K 25 475,628 455,738
Accruals and other payables FEET B R Kk EAb R IR 26 141,619 157,974
Contract liabilities BHAR 27 518,266 228,141
Lease liabilities HERE 28 1,836 1,567
Provision for tax IR 342,039 309,788
Borrowings B 29 125,437 435,045
1,604,825 1,588,253
Liabilities associated with assets D AFEHENEE
classified as held for sale HENAaE 24 257,374 -
1,862,199 1,588,253
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,425,187 1,414,731
Total assets less current BEERARBAMSE
liabilities 2,404,499 2,437,104
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 28 - 1,836
Borrowings B 29 619,112 423,042
Deferred tax liability EETIERE 30 187,777 204,203
806,889 629,081
Net assets EEFE 1,597,610 1,808,023
EQUITY s
Share capital & 7 32 37,628 37,628
Reserves s 33 1,709,344 1,810,457
Equity attributable to the owners AR EHEE AEGER
of Company 1,746,972 1,848,085
Non-controlling interests FEIEA S (149,362) (40,062)
Total equity SR 1,597,610 1,808,023

Zhang Gao Bin

Luo Zhangguan

Director Director
EFE EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n‘l—_]_\ }EEUILE%

(For the year ended 31 December 2020) (#Z—%

—RFEF A= —HIFE)

2020 2019
“ECEF T—NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B et AR T ABRETFIT
Loss before tax BRI AT E 1B (116,132) (176,290)
Adjustments for: FE
Interest income on financial HEHENAARE 22/
assets carried at amortised BEMBBA
costs 7 (1,063) (692)
Fair value changes on wEYENTES
investment properties 14 45,930 62,581
Allowance for expected credit FEW R RTB ER= BB 18
losses for trade receivables B 9 1,231 555
Management fee income from JE Uy — el Bt & R ]
an associate =N 7 (234) (212)
Interest income on loan to an HT—MHEE QR
associate BERZ M BWA 7 (734) (665)
Impairment loss of properties BRAMEZREERE
under development 168,000 165,706
Reversal of interest expenses BEEF 2R 7 - (6,093)
Reversal of over-provided BoBEEERX
expenses 7 (4,600) -
Share of result of an associate 15— & A B ¥E48 17 (38,556) (19,630)
Finance costs BhE KA 8 53,576 33,127
Loss on written off plant and WEE R = M RR 2 B 1E
equipment 7 - 16
Depreciation of plant and W R EETE
equipment
— owned assets —-BHEE 9 1,866 1,397
- right-of-use assets —(FREEE 9 1,592 1,591
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
an\ IE@/)ILE%‘:Z

(For the year ended 31 December 2020) (Bt2—F—-FF+=H=+—HILFZ)

2020 2019
—EBCEF T —NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AREFT AEREFIT
Operating cash flow before LEEEYRI 2 KE
working capital changes ERE 110,876 61,391
Increase in properties under BROPMERBFELS
development and completed 2O T EEEN
properties held for sale (478,026) (612,792)
(Increase)/decrease in trade FEMBR SR (#Ehn)
receivables (1,745) 945
Increase in prepayments, JENFIE - He Xk
deposits and other E{@FH&ZEE KA AN
receivables (86,212) (58,881)
(Increase)/decrease in contract & LA (&), R
costs (1,748) 1,665
Increase in trade payables FESTBR FRIE 0 212,527 176,487
Decrease in accruals JEFtE A R EMER
and other payables AR ORI (7,701) (9,051)
Increase/(decrease) in contract ~ A#IEEEI S CHL)
liabilities 290,125 (18,487)
Cash generated from/(used in) BRI/ (FTA)
operations ZRE 38,096 (458,723)
Land appreciation tax paid 2 I E (8,510) (5,340)
Income tax paid B (2,788) (19,054)
Tax refund IR - 8,705
Net cash generated from/ REEKME /(A 2
(used in) operating activities & FH 26,798 (474,412)
Cash flows from investing REXBZRERE
activities
Purchase of plant and equipment & E & E K& & (3,084) (1,858)
Purchase of investment property BEERE W (930) (1,581)
Release of pledged deposits R ERZS 3,000 -
Placement of pledged deposits  F B E L& (2,196) (1,190)
Interest received 2R FLE 1,063 692
Dividend received from KE—MEERRINRE
an associate - 210,000
Net cash (used in)/generated ®RE%%¥% (FiA) Bz
from investing activities H& T8 (2,147) 206,063
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
an\ }EEUILE%

(For the year ended 31 December 2020) (# %2 -F-FF+_—A=+—HIFFZ)

2020 2019
—EBHF —E-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B et AREFT ABRETFIT
Cash flows from financing MEXKCHERE
activities
Proceeds from bank loans RITE RS HIA 183,256 340,471
Proceeds from other unsecured — EfEERE TS FIE
loans 104,723 330,000
Proceeds from other secured Hi B ERERERIAE
loans 332,600 119,000
Repayment of bank loans EBRIBTEXR (203,634) (7,144)
Repayment of other unsecured  EEHMERERER
loans (145,760) (316,754)
Repayment of other secured BEAMEERER
loans (320,000) -
Net movement of amount JE < — Bt & 2 R RKIA
due to an associate gE)FE (155) (59,825)
Net movement of amount FH BHITESNIE
due to an executive director BE)FE (5,049) 2,774
Finance costs rﬂé)ﬂm (53,576) (22,467)
Capital injection from EERRERITE
non-controlling interests - 35,000
Repayment of principal of lease EEHEEEAR T
liabilities (1,567) (1,371)
Net cash (used in)/generated REX% (FiH), s
from financing activities ZBEEFEE (109,162) 419,684
Net (decrease)/increase in cash iﬁi&ﬁ > (EY)
and cash equivalents ) EINEEE (84,511) 151,335
Cash and cash equivalents at F\\ ﬂ BrzRE &k
1 January HEZEEY 194,569 43,211
Effect of foreign exchange rate fEREE) &
changes (59) 23
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=ZA=+—RH2z
31 December BeMREeEEY 109,999 194,569
Analysis of cash and cash HEeERRESEBYDF
equivalents
Bank balances and cash RITHEBERRS 23 109,991 194,569
Bank balances and cash SEAFEHEEEMNIR
classified under asset held 1TEHREIES®
for sale 24 8 -
109,999 194,569
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GARREBBE

(For the year ended 31 December 2020) (Bt2—F—-FF+=H=+—HILFZ)

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARRREAEL
Fair value
through other
Currency Capital comprehensive Non-
Share Share translation  Capital Contributed redemption income  Statutory Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve  reserve  surplus reserve reserve reserve loss  Sub-total interests equity
BAVE
EL3Ed E5RE LA FER

BE  RiEE fif 5% HARR fif 2EUABR  EERE ZitkR It BE BRER
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTR ARETA ARBTT ARETZ ARETR  AREFT  ARRTZ  ARETL ARRTT ARETZ ARRT7

Asat1January 2020 H-ZF-5%E
-f-B

37,628 2,982,905  (240,116) 861 301,799 82 (1,258) - (1,233,821) 1,848,085 (40,062) 1,808,023
lossfortheyear  EEER - - - - - - - - (100868 (100868  (89,300) (190,168)
Other comprehensive  EEEM2E
loss for the year: Sk
Bxchange difference  EENER
on translation of LHER
financial statement ~ ZERE8
of foreign
operations - - (245) - - - - - ; (245) . Gl
Total comprehensive ~ £E2EER
loss for the year e = = (245) = = = - - (100,868) (101,113)  (89,300)  (190,413)
Addtional interestin ~ S\—FBAR
asubsidiary frotg)  MENER
() - - - - - - - = - - (20,0000  (20,000)
Transfer to gpEfmft
non-distributable 7 REEEES
reserve fund - - - - - - - 16,274 (16,274) - - -
Asat 31 December W-B-BE
2020 2R
=t-f 37,628 2,982,905  (240,361) 861 301,799 82 (1,253) 16,274  (1,350,963) 1,746,972  (149,362) 1,597,610

note:  On 19 March 2020, Guangzhou Fengmao Real Estate /it R-ZZE-_ZF=A+nH BEMEXE

Development Co., Ltd. (“Fengmao”), an indirect non-wholly EREAERA (F%BEJ —EREEFEEE
owned subsidiary, has entered into an agreement with Yunnan {hp==I/NCID) Eﬁii glEFER A A ([€
Jinchuang Investment Co., Ltd. (“Jinchuang”), a non-controlling gl %@%ﬁ%yfbﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁ A (&
shareholder of Yunnan Xin Tian Culture Travel Development MRl MIEIEME) FIS - RiE
Limited (“Yunnan Xintian”). Pursuant to the agreement, Jinchuang ZiE SEIREMEXRREELNEFIK
agreed to give up all right and obligation of its 40% equity 40% M ZFRB RN REME - EREHEN
interest in Yunnan Xintian to Fengmao as the full settlement of H g 2% 2 38 AR #20,000,0007T ©

RMB20,000,000 that it due to Fengmao.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

nVT\ *

“)i%&%@%

(For the year ended 31 December 2020) (2% —

—FEf— A= — AU FE)

Attributable to owners of the Company

YNNG 2WN L
Fair value
through other
Currency Capital - comprehensive Non-
Share Share  tranglation Capital  Contributed  redemption income  Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve loss  Sub-total interests equity
BATE
B is BrEE AR JER
BE RGEE HE  EARE  AARR & 2ENARE Zithi gt BR  EReE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
NEEFT NEBFT ARETT ARBFT AREFT AREFT  AREFT  ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETI
Asat1January 2019 RNZE-F
-A-H 37,628 2,982,905  (240,157) 861 301,799 82 (1,253 (1,133,977) 1,947,888 16,201 1,964,089
Loss for the year FEBE - - - - - - - (99,844) (99,844) (91,263  (191,107)
Other comprehensive ~ EEEM2H
income for the year: WA
Exchange difference B EFIHNER
on tranglation of ZHBRER
financial statement of 7 EH =5
foreign operations - - 4 - - - - - 41 - 4
Total comprenensive ~ £E2EKR
loss for the year ek - - 4 - - - - (99,844) (99,803)  (91,263)  (191,066)
Capital injection from  FHZRE R
non-controlling B
interests - - - - - - - - - 35,000 35,000
Asat31December ~R-E-h%
2019 =
=t-H 37,628 2,982,905  (240,116) 861 301,799 82 (1,253 (1233,821) 1,848,085  (40,062) 1,808,023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R R M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2020) (Bt2—F—-FF+=H=+—HILFZ)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Talent Property Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda and domiciled
in Hong Kong. The addresses of its registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the corporate information section to the annual report.
The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Talent
Trend Holdings Limited, which is incorporated in the BVI,
is the ultimate holding company of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are
including (i) property development, (i) property investment
and (i) property management.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong
Kong dollars (“HKD”), while the consolidated financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”). As
the major business of the Group is located in the
Mainland China, the directors consider that it will be
more appropriate to adopt RMB as the Group’s and the
Company’s presentation currency.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020 were approved for issue by the board
of directors on 30 March 2021.

1.

—REH

FARMESEBRAA ([AAR]) A
RBEREIMAIZBERAA - UES
BEBEH - AARZEMPERER
FELEMWBAEFRPAAER —HRK
B ARAIZRONERBBERIME
FRRAAE) ([B2FT]) T ° Talent Trend
Holdings Limited &4~ A &) B fx AR A
A RABREXESTMAKL

KRB BREERAF - TEMERQF
CEBEBEBRBOMERE  (\WWMER
BER(iVEEIE -

RRBzNeEERET (EBX]) - M
RAEVBHRERRUAARE (TARK] 2
5 c AR ARBNEZRBUNTEA
i REERSEBARBERAEHE
RARRFMEINERERAHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARM

A N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2020) (B2 =—F-FF+=-H=+—HIFE)

2.

R i

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). For the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information
is reasonably expected to influence decisions made by
primary users. These consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are summarised below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented
unless otherwise stated. The adoption of new or amended
HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements, if any, are disclosed in Note 3.

EEBEBR DT 2020F Fif
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R R M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2020) (Bt2—F—-FF+=H=+—HILFZ)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments and certain properties that are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 16 and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that at initial recognition the results of the valuation
technique equals the transaction price.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARM

7 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2020) (B2 =—F-FF+=-H=+—HIFE)

2.

R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are

changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R R M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2020) (Bt2—F—-FF+=H=+—HILFZ)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARM

7 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2020) (B2 =—F-FF+=-H=+—HIFE)

2.

R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s relevant components of equity
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves between the
Group and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group’s and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9
or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R R M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2020) (Bt2—F—-FF+=H=+—HILFZ)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate. Changes in net assets of the associate
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are not accounted for unless such changes resulted in
changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds
the Group’s interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognizing its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARM

7 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2020) (B2 =—F-FF+=-H=+—HIFE)

2.

R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be impaired.
When any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of
the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate and the retained interest is
a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing of the relevant interest
in the associate is included in the determination of the
gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
on the same basis as would be required if that associate
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain
or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant
associate.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of interests in the associate that are not related to the
Group.
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2.

R i

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series
of distinct goods or services that are substantially the
same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2020) (Bt2—F—-FF+=H=+—HILFZ)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

The performance obligations of the Group for contracts
with customers are summarized as follows:

(i) Development and sales of properties (revenue
recognised at a point in time)

For contracts entered into with customers on sales
of properties, based on opinion from the Group’s
internal legal counsel, taking into consideration
of the relevant contract terms and customary
practice within the industry in the PRC, the legal
environment and relevant legal precedent, the
management of the Group concluded that the
Group does not have an enforceable right to
payment for the work performed to date at all times
during the contract prior to transfer of the relevant
properties to customers. Revenue from sales
of residential properties in the PRC is therefore
recognized at a point in time when the completed
property is transferred to customers, being at the
point that the customer obtains the control of
the completed property and the Group has fully
received the consideration of the properties sold.

The Group normally receives 2%-33% (2019:
2%-48%) of the contract value as deposits from
customers when they sign the sale and purchase
agreements. Such advance payment result in
contract liabilities being recognised throughout the
property construction period.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Development and sales of properties (revenue
recognised at a point in time) (continued)

The Group considers the advance payment from
customers contain significant financing component
and accordingly the amount of consideration is
adjusted for the effects of the time value of money
taking into consideration the credit characteristics
of the Group. As this accrual increases the
amount of the contract liability during the period of
construction, it increases the amount of revenue
recognised when control of the completed property
is transferred to the customer.

The Group applies the practical expedient for
advance payment received from customers, given
that if the corresponding performance obligation is
expected to satisfy within 12 months after receiving
the advance payment, (i.e. when the control of the
completed property is transferred to the customer
within 12 months), the financing component
is considered insignificant and the amounts of
consideration, contract liability and revenue are not
adjusted for the effects of any time value of money.

The Group also applies the practical expedient of
expensing all incremental costs to obtain a contract
if these costs would otherwise have been fully
amortised to profit or loss within one year.

Property management (revenue recognised
over time)

For contracts entered into with customers on
property management services, it is considered as
monthly services provided to tenants and owners
of properties and the performance obligations are
fulfilled on a straight-line basis over the contracts
terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(For the year ended 31 December 2020) (#tZ =% —

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9.
Group’s unconditional right to consideration,

In contrast, a receivable represents the
i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs
that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer
that it would not have incurred if the contract had not
been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions) as
an asset if it expects to recover these costs. The asset so
recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or loss on
a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to
the customer of the goods or services to which the assets
relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing
all incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs
would otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss
within one year.

Revenue from other source

Rental income of property leasing under operating leases
is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2020) (B2 =—F-FF+=-H=+—HIFE)

2.

R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date,
as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed. As a practical expedient, leases
with similar characteristics are accounted on a portfolio
basis when the Group reasonably expects that the effects
on the consolidated financial statements would not differ
materially from individual leases within the portfolio.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease

component on the basis of their relative stand-alone
prices.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2020) (Bt2—F—-FF+=H=+—HILFZ)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of land and building that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis
or another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group

in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
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2.

R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet
the definition of investment property, properties under
development or completed properties held for sale as
a separate line item on the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments ("HKFRS 9”) and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2020) (Bt2—F—-FF+=H=+—HILFZ)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

The lease payments include:

2. FESHHREHEE &)

HE (8
EEBHEREBA (F)
HEERE (%)
MEFRBEBRE

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option
to terminate the lease.

BENK (BRELDEEN) A
FRERHEES

BTEERFEMENTERE
$IE - S EANEI B BME
58 )

RIEFSREEEREH AN KREE
BLEER:

IMAKBAEETES TITEEER
BERENITEE: &

AR AR E S TTEEER
RIERE - AIFFAR RSN

Eon
N

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use

assets) whenever:
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the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

R EHAEZEL REBR
T HEHEREEBERERN
APl A B ST BRI R BRI K
ERTHEFEMEMNTE

Talent Property Group Limited Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
A

BTSRRI RE

(For the year ended 31 December 2020) (B2 =—F-FF+=-H=+—HIFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

FESHBERBE &)

Leases (continued) HE (8)
The Group as a lessee (continued) KEFEDBRBA ()
Lease liabilities (continued) HEAE (&)

the lease payments change due to changes in
market rental rates following a market rent review/
expected payment under a guaranteed residual
value, in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item

on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate

lease if:

the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as

a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease

liability based on the lease term of the modified lease by

discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease modifications (continued)

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset. Other than
investment properties measured under fair value model,
such costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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2.

R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise, except for exchange differences on
monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely
to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in
the foreign operation), which are recognized initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity
to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the
Group’s interests in associates.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Renminbi) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of currency translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R R M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2020) (Bt2—F—-FF+=H=+—HILFZ)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset),
all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after
the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is
included in the general borrowing pool for calculation
of capitalisation rate on general borrowings. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARM

7 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2020) (B2 =—F-FF+=-H=+—HIFE)

2.

R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages, salaries, annual leaves and sick leaves)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Defined contribution plans

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the
PRC, the Group participates in a defined contribution
basic pension insurance in the social insurance system
established and managed by government organisations.
The Group makes contributions to basic pension
insurance plans based on the applicable benchmarks
and rates stipulated by the government. Basic pension
insurance contributions are recognised as part of the
cost of assets or charged to profit or loss as the related
services are rendered by the employees.

The Group also participates in a pension scheme under
the rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”) for all employees
in Hong Kong, which is a defined contribution retirement
scheme. The contributions to the MPF Scheme are based
on minimum statutory contribution requirement of 5% of
eligible employees’ relevant aggregate income. The assets
of this pension scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in independently administered funds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R R M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2020) (#Z —FE—FF+—H=+—HIIFZ)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before
tax because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARM

(For the year ended 31 December 2020) (# %2 -F-FF+_—A=+—HIFFZ)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale,
except for freehold land, which is always presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R R M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2020) (Bt2—F—-FF+=H=+—HILFZ)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not
recognised at initial recognition and over the lease terms
due to application of the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the
relevant tax authority will accept the uncertain tax
treatment used, or proposed to be use by individual group
entities in their income tax filings. If it is probable, the
current and deferred taxes are determined consistently
with the tax treatment in the income tax filings. If it is not
probable that the relevant taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment, the effect of each uncertainty
is reflected by using either the most likely amount or the
expected value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARM
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(For the year ended 31 December 2020) (B2 =—F-FF+=-H=+—HIFE)

2.

R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes. Plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual value over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements 20%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipments 10-33.33%
Motor vehicles 20%

The asset's residual value, depreciation methods and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each reporting date.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an item of plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R R M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2020) (Bt2—F—-FF+=H=+—HILFZ)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. Investment properties also
include leased properties which are being recognised as
right-of-use assets and subleased by the Group under
operating leases. Investment properties are initially
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at fair value, adjusted to exclude
any prepaid or accrued operating lease income. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in
which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.

Impairment on plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and contract costs other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its plant and equipment and right
of use assets with finite useful lives and contract costs
to determine whether there is any indication that these
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARM
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(For the year ended 31 December 2020) (B2 =—F-FF+=-H=+—HIFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment on plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and contract costs other than goodwill
(continued)

The recoverable amount of plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and contract costs are estimated individually.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication
that corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication
exists, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R R M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2020) (Bt2—F—-FF+=H=+—HILFZ)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment on plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and contract costs other than goodwill
(continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.

For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares
the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of
cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount of the
group of cash-generating units.

In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized
immediately in profit or loss.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2020) (B2 =—F-FF+=-H=+—HIFE)

2.

R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Properties under development and completed
properties held for sale

Properties for/under development which are intended to
be sold upon completion of development and properties
for sale are classified as current assets. Properties for/
under development/properties for sale are carried at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined
on a specific identification basis including allocation of
the related development expenditure incurred and where
appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for the
pro